
T R E A S U R E

In� 1895, Harvard deployed the most 
powerful photographic telescope in 
the world to a high-altitude observa-
tory in Arequipa, Peru, where it played 

a seminal role in discoveries about Earth’s 
placement in the cosmos, and ultimately, the 
expansion rate of the universe.

The Bruce telescope owes its name, fame, 
and subsequent rediscovery, respectively, 
to three women. Miss Catherine Bruce, a 
wealthy, unmarried New Yorker, donated 
$50,000 to have the tele-
scope built, and thus gave 
the instrument its name. 
(The lens blanks, ordered 
from a French glass man-
ufactory, took three years 
to arrive). It owes its 
place in history to Henri-
etta Leavitt, an 1892 Rad-
cliffe graduate employed 
at the Harvard College 
Observatory, who in 
1908 published her ob-

servation that the 
peak brightness 
of certain pulsing 
stars called Cephe-
ids was related to 
the length of their 

pulsing cycle, or period. Later astronomers 
realized that this fundamental insight could 
be used to calculate the distances to these 
unusual stars, by comparing a Cepheid’s 
observed brightness from Earth to what 
its brightness should be based on its period. 
Edwin Hubble used Cepheids in the 1920s 
to establish that the Milky Way was just a 
single galaxy in a universe of many, while 
John Huchra, the late Doyle professor of cos-
mology, used them in 1993 to help calculate 

the Hubble 
constant, the 
expansion rate 

of the universe.
But the telescope itself, if 

not its contributions to sci-
entific discovery, might have 

been lost if not for Sara Schechner, Wheat-
land curator of the Harvard Collection of His-
torical Scientific Instruments, who recently 
stumbled upon its lenses while doing recon-
naissance at the Harvard 
Smithsonian Center for 
Astrophysics’s decom-
missioned Oak Ridge 
site in Harvard, Mas-
sachusetts. (The scene, 
she says, with trees growing up around aban-
doned buildings and garages, was right out 
of Planet of the Apes.) The telescope had been 
shipped from Peru to South Africa in 1927, 
but its fate after the 1950s was undocument-
ed until Schechner found the lenses, wrapped 
in flannel and padded with pillows of hair 
and straw (inhabited by mice), still in the 
wooden crates shipped back from South Af-
rica. Once she realized what they were, she 

located the rest of the telescope in a 
building nearby. Now restored, the 
lenses and their original brass and 
cast-iron holders (called “cells”)  
are on display, destined for the per-
manent collection she oversees, 
where the contributions of Cathe-
rine Bruce and Henrietta Leavitt will  
long be remembered.

                vjonathan shaw

Eye on the Cosmos
Miss Bruce’s telescope and Leavitt’s Law

Visit harvardmag.com 
to see more images of 
the telescope and its 
rediscovery.

Clockwise from far left: 
the lenses of the Bruce 
telescope mounted for 
display; the telescope 
when in use at Harvard’s 
observatory in Arequipa, 
Peru; Henrietta Leavitt; 
and a heavily annotated 
print from a glass plate 
negative showing the 
Spiral Nebula, enlarged 
six times
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